STOCK AMERICA LLC.

Sterilization Systems

ICON^{SMS} Operator Interface User Guide



STOCK AMERICA

ICON^{SMS} Operator Interface User Guide

©2018 STOCK America LLC. 101 Green Trace Court Garner, NC 27529 Tel 919.661.1911 • Fax 919.661.3778



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ICON ^{SMS} OPERATOR INTERFACE USER GUIDE	
ICON ^{LE} Operator Interface	4
Graphics	4
Header Section Fields	5
Footer Section Fields	6
Footer Section Descriptions	
Main Menu Navigation	
Main Menu Navigation Fields	7
Overview Button	7
Alarms Menu	
Trend Button	
Inputs Button	
Outputs Button	
Manual	
ICON ^{SMS} Button	
Application Settings Button	
Users Admin Button	
Exit HMI Button	
Log On /Log Off	



ICON^{LE} Operator Interface

The ICON^{LE} Operator Interface is the graphical user interface used by the retort operator to interface with the retort. The application displays the current status of the devices on the retort and the process information related to the execution of the deployed or active recipe.

The validity of the retort process depends on the correct execution of the authorized recipe without exception or atypical intervention by the operator. Any changes, including PAUSE, ABORT or HOLD, may affect the adequacy of the process and cause a deviation. Any deviation from a normal process should be reviewed by company management and evaluated by a competent process authority.

Each individual retort has a dedicated PLC (Programmable Logic Controller). The operator interface is a touch screen unit that is used by the retort operator to interface with each retort.

Graphics

The graphical operator interface consists of four screen areas:





Header	Always visible to the operator (see header section fields for more info)
Footer	Always visible to the operator (see footer section fields for more info)
Left	Shared by the menu and the "Recipe Steps" status information
Body	Changes according to the graphics selected by the user

Header Section Fields

The header section contains the elements described below and an additional feature to provide feedback to the retort operator concerning the recipe download status.

Header Section Descriptions

Retort #	Retort Id
Product Id	Recipe Name
Rev	Recipe Revision
Cook Id	Cook Id input by the user at the start of the cook
User	Current log in username, pressing this area opens the login screen.
Date / Time	Current Date and Time of the operator interface
Recipe Desc	Recipe Description
Batch Id	Auto generated number on the start of every cook
	Batch Identification. RRHHMISSMMDDYYYY
	RR – Retort number
	HH – Hour of start of batch
	MI – Minutes of start of batch
	SS – Seconds of start of batch
	MM – Month of start of batch
	DD – Day of start of batch
	YYYY – Year of start of batch
Current Step #	Current step number of process. If paused, it represents the step number the system it will run in
	once the pause is removed.
Phase	Phase description of the current step. If paused, it represents the phase description of the step
	the system it will run in once the pause is removed.
Setpoint	Display of the recipe setpoint for the following fields:
	Time, SV Temp, PV Temp, Sys Press, Flow, PV Level and Speed
Actual	Display of the actual process value for the following fields:
	Time, SV Temp, PV Temp, Sys Press, Flow, PV Level and Speed.
Total Time	Total runtime for the active recipe or cook
PV Temp Ramp	PV Temperature Ramp value, if active from Recipe
Sys Pressure Ramp	System Pressure Ramp value, if active from Recipe
System is On Hold	Visual indication when the system is on hold.
Process Paused	Visible indication when the system is paused.
Alarm Indication	Visual indication when the retort has an alarm active.
User Inputs Required	Visual indication to inform the retort operator to enter the user inputs.



Footer Section Fields

The footer section contains a series of buttons. The Virtual Keyboard, English, Española and Login buttons are always available. All other buttons are available based on the status of the cook. The buttons that are always available are:

Footer Section Descriptions

Start	The Start Button is available if the retort is not running & the door is closed and locked.
Abort	The Abort button is available during all phases.
Hold	Places the current running segment on hold. The system is not allowed to advance even if all the conditions to complete the step are met. To advance to the next step the user must remove the hold. The button is available during a cook when pause and there is not an active hold on the segment.
Remove Hold	Removes the hold condition from the current segment. The button is available during a cook when the system is in hold condition, however, not but not in pause.
Pause	The Pause Button is available during a cook when pause is not already active. Pausing the segment stops all functions (i.e. valve operations, timers, etc.)
Prev Step	The Prev Step Button is available when the system is paused. Pressing this button will revert to the previous selected step.
Next Step	The Next Step Button is available when the system is paused. Pressing this button will advance to the next selected step.
Remove Pause	The Remove Pause Button is available during a cook and when the pause is active. Removing the pause will reset all timers.
Initial Temp	If required by the recipe, the Initial Temperature is available, and the user will be prompted during the HSV step to input the information.
User Inputs	User Inputs is available if the recipe calls for user inputs to be entered during the cook phase.
Manual Control	Manual Control Button are only active while the system is idle. User can Enable/Disabled the manual control to allow manual control of the devices.
Virtual Keyboard	Virtual Keyboard Button opens the windows virtual keyboard to which needs to be use if the IconSMS application is access from the HMI.
English	English Button change the HMI language to the English Language.
Español	Español Button change the HMI language to the Español Language.
Login	Button to open the login screen



Main Menu Navigation



Figure 2 – Main Display Graphics

Main Menu Navigation Fields

STOCK 05/20/2020 15:45:19 User: stocka OVERVIEW ALARMS TREND INPUTS/OUTPUT ICON SMS APPLICATION

Figure 3 – Main Menu Navigation Fields

Overview Button

The overview display contains a graphical representation of the status of the discrete and analog devices on the retorts (see figure 4a). The devices on the screen are shown in green when they are not energized and yellow when they are active or energized.





Figure 4a – Graphical Overview

It also displays the current status of the door functions, safety functions and water level to help operators determine the current status on the retort. See below for an image (Figure 4b) showing this area.

	Door	Door Status Info
Water Level	Unlocked	Door Close Sensor 😑
Level %	3.1 Temp <= 120 F	😑 🛛 Pressure Safety 💽
Max Level Sensor	Level <= 16 % (🔵 Door Locked 💽
Min Level Sensor	Press <= 0.3 psi (🔵 Door Safety Circuit 🔵

Figure 4b – Graphical Overview

stockamerica.com

Alarms Menu

The alarm menu allows you to select between the alarm summary, indicating the status of any active system alarms and the alarm history displays the alarm history (See Figure 5). Alarms can be acknowledged, Filtered and Printed. When Alarms are unacknowledged, the system displays a red banner which indicates the quantity of active unacknowledged Alarms. Active Alarms that are acknowledged are displayed in an orange banner. Three (3) priority levels: Priority 1 includes deviations, Priority 2 includes alarms, and priority 3 include warnings. The following Alarms are configured on the HMI.

Deviation Alarms

- Lo IT Deviation •
- Process Pause Deviation
- PV Temp Lo Deviation •

STOCK[®]

- Short Seg Time Dev •
- User Input Not Entered • Deviation
- Alarms
- **PV Flow Low** •
- **PV Pressure High**
- **PV** Temperature High •
- **PV Level High** •
- E-Stop
- Segment on Hold •
- **Process Abort**
- Circulation Pump Overload
- Door Closed and Not Locked •
- Short CUT Time •
- **Temp Pressure Relationship**

Warning

- Process Id Buffers Getting Full
- **Process Segment Buffers Getting Full**

- **Process Abort Deviation** •
- **PV Press Lo Deviation**
- User Input Ref Temp < Chart Temp •
- Low Flow Deviation •
- Short CUT Time •
- **PV Flow High**
- **PV Pressure Low**
- **PV** Temperature Low •
- PV Level Low •
- Process Pause
- Main Air Pressure Low •
- Door Open •
- Maintenance Switch ON
- **UPS** Active •
- **CUT Time Exceeded**
- Vent Time Exceeded •

STOCK America LLC 101 Green Trace Court, Garner, NC 27529 (P)919.661.1911 (F)919.661.3778





Figure 5 – Alarm Summary

To select the alarm summary or alarm history, the user will make their selection from the list box label mode. When the user selects the summary, the title of the display will read "alarm summary" and when the user selects "history" the title will display "alarm history". (Always make certain that the Group labeled "Global" is selected. Otherwise no history will be displayed.) To select the desired time frame, the user presses the filter button. This opens a new graphic. The operator then selects the desired filters.

Trend Button

The trend display charts the real-time and historical data of PV Temperature, PV Pressure and Phased (see Figure 6).





Figure 6 – Trend

Trends are saved by batch id. Each time a new batch runs, the system creates a new historical file. The files are stored on the local computer's hard drive and are accessible up to 14 days after creation. To load a historical trend, the user must press the **Load History** button. This opens a new window which contains a list of the historical files named according to the batch id. The user can select the log file of interest and presses the **ok** button. (See figure 7) After the user reviews the historical trend, he/she can press the **load current** trend to display the actual running trend otherwise the next time the trend graphic is loaded the system will default to the **current** trend.





Figure 7 – Historical Trend Log files

Trend Tool Bar



Trend Tool Bar Commands

ICON	COMMAND	DESCRIPTION
۸	Run	Set the Trend to the Play Mode. In this mode, the X axis is continuously updated (online mode). This option is disabled (grayed out) when the trend is already in Play Mode.
	Stop	Set the Trend to the Stop Mode. In this mode, the X axis is not continuously updated (History Mode), so the user can visualize history data in a frozen period of time. This option is disabled (grayed out) when the trend is already in Stop Mode.
3	Period	Launches an embedded dialog which enables the user to modify the main settings of the X axis scale.
	Legend Properties	Launches an embedded dialog which enables the user to modify the Legend main settings.
1	Pen Style	Launches an embedded dialog which enables the user to modify the style of the selected pen.
<u>چ</u> ا	Add Pen	Launches a dialog which enables the user to add a new pen to the Trend object.
×	Remove Pen	Removes the selected pen from the Trend Object
]⇔⊒¦	Multiple Selections	Switches the Y scale to Multiple Sections (a section for each pen) or Single Section (all Pens share the same Y scale section).

STOCK America LLC 101 Green Trace Court, Garner, NC 27529 (P)919.661.1911 (F)919.661.3778



	Cursor	Turns the cursor (ruler) to visible or hidden
ġ	Print	Prints the current state of the Trend display. (Historical data is not printed)

Y AXIS

The trend will display a Y Axis per trending tag see image below.



Scroll Bar

Using the Scroll bar, the user can slide through the X axis values, according to the period configured for this scale. See below.

Time Bar

Using the Time bar, the user can modify the Duration, as well as the Start Date/Time and/or the End Date/Time, for the data displayed on the object.

•			F
11/06/2009 💌 11:14:28 🛨	Duration: 78:36:10.9	11/09/2009	17:50:39 🗧
	Scroll Bar/ Time bar		
STOCK America LLC 101 Green Tra	stockamerica.com		
Icon ^{sms} User Guide			13



Legend

2	×	9	۶	100 T	Label	Current	Cursor
			<u> </u>		PV Temp	254.50	0.00
			<u> </u>		PV Pressure	12.00	0.00

Legend Tool Bar Commands

ICON	COMMAND	DESCRIPTION
1	Selection	Launches a dialog which enables the user to replace the data point associated with the selected pen on the legend.
×	Remove	Removes the selected pen from the Trend object.
Q	Hide	When checked, the selected pen is visible; otherwise, it is hidden
1	Pen Style	Launches an embedded dialog which enables the user to modify the style of the selected pen.
 2 2 0 0	Scale	When this box is checked, the Y axis scale is visible; otherwise, it is hidden. The scale can be hidden only when the Multiple Sections option is off.



Inputs Button

The digital inputs display indicates the status of the devices that are digital inputs to the PLC (See Figure 8).

S STOCK	05/20/2020 09:41:0	5			TCONLONG	User: stocka
Prod Id: Steam Prod Desc: Can 12 Batch Id: 01122	1 Water Spra y Rev: 2 oz 7010105192020	00 Cook Id: Step/Phase: 00 IDL		Time Setpoint 060:00 Actual 000:00 Tot Time 097:24	PV Temp Flow 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 80.5 Ramp -	Sys Press PV Level 0.0 0.0 0.1 3.1 - 0.0
Pending			Digita	al Inputs		
TIME TEMP	O I1.0 - E-Stop M	Iodule	-	о О I2.4 - Ти	rolley Lock	
1 SS Fill	O I1.1 - E-Stop R	leset		O 12.5 - In	nstrument Air PS	
2 SS dPreheat	🔵 I1.2 - Door Saf	ety Module		O I2.6 - Ci	irculation Pump Aux	
4 SS dHold	🔵 I1.3 - Door Clo	sed		O I2.7 - C	onveyor Forward Aux	
5 SS iMicroCool	O I1.4 - Maintena	ince Switch		О 13.0 - С	Conveyor Reverse Aux	
7 SS Drain	O I1.5 - Minimum	n Water Level		O I3.1 - F	E-Stop 1 Main Panel	
	O I1.6 - Maximur	n Water Level		О 13.2 - Б	E-Stop 2 PB Panel	
	O I1.7 - Circulatio	on Pump OL		O I3.3 - I	Reset PB Panel	
	O I2.0 - Conveyo	r OL		O I3.4 - U	UPS Power	
	O I2.1 - Conveyo	r Forward		O 13.5 - I	PV Zero PS	
	O I2.2 - Conveyo	r Reverse		O I3.6 - 5	Spare	
	O I2.3 - Trolley P	resent		O I3.7 - 9	Spare	
U Process Start				Manual Ctrl Disabled	e k	Virtual P Login

Figure 8 – Digital Inputs



Analog Inputs

The analog inputs display indicates the status of the devices that are analog inputs to the PLC. (See Figure 9)



Figure 9 – Analog Inputs



Outputs Button

The digital outputs display indicates the status of the devices that are digital outputs to the PLC (See Figure 10). This screen is also used during manual control to activate devices while the system is on idle and manual control enable. (see the manual section.)

	05/20/202009:51:58						User: stocka
O of o circ	OVERVIEW	ALARMS	TREND	INPUTS/OL	JTPUT ICO	N SMS	APPLICATION
Prod Id: Steam	Water Spray Rev:	00 Cook Id:		T Setpoint	ime PV Temp 60:00 0.0	Flow 0.0	Sys Press PV Level 0.0 0.0
Prod Desc: <mark>Can 1</mark> 2	2 oz			Actual 0	00:00 72.1	0.0	0.1 3.1
Batch Id: 01122	7010105192020	Step/Phase: 00 IDLE		Tot Time	97:24 80.5	Ramp	0.0
Pending			Digital	Outputs			
	O 05.0 - Red Light			0	06.5 - Spare		
Recipe Steps	^			•			
1 SS Fill	O 05.1 - Yellow Lig	ht		0	06.6 - Spare		
2 SS dPreheat	O 05.2 - Green Lig	ht		0	06.7 - Spare		
3 SS dComeUp				0			
4 SS dHold	O 05.3 - Alarm Hol	'n		0	Solval.u - Pre-Heat	vaive	
5 SS MicroCool	O 05.4 - Spare			0	SolVal.1 - Water Fill	Valve	
6 SS iCooling				\circ	SolVal 2 - Sparo		
7 SS Drain	O 05.5 - Spare			0	Solval.z - Spare		
	O 05.6 - Spare			0	SolVal.3 - Spare		
	O 05.7 - Spare			0	SolVal.4 - Direct Cin	culation Val	<i>i</i> e
	•			0			
	O 06.0 - Circulation	n Pump		0	SolVal.5 - Hx Circula	ation Valve	
	O 06.1 - Conveyor	Forward		0	SolVal.6 - Blank Dis	с	
	O 06.2 - Conveyor	Reverse		0	SolVal.7 - Blank Dis	с	
	06.3 - Spare			0	SolVal.8 - Door Lock	k Open	
	06.4 - Spare			0	SolVal.9 - Door Lock	< Close	
() Process				🛃 Mar	ual Ctrl		/irtual
Start				D	isabled	- Key	board 🗖 👓

Figure 10 – Digital Outputs



Analog Outputs

The analog outputs display indicates the status of the devices that are analog output to the PLC. (See Figure 11)

S STOCK	05/20/2020 09:52:41 OVERVIEW	ALARMS	TREND	INPUTS/OUTPUT	ICON SMS	User: stocka APPLICATION
Prod Id: Steam Prod Desc: Can 12 Batch Id: 01122	1 Water Spray Rev: 2 oz 7010105192020	00 Cook Id: Step/Phase: 00 I	DLE	TimeSetpoint060:00Actual000:00Tot Time097:24	PV Temp Flow 0.0 0.0 72.1 0.0 80.5 Ramp -	Sys Press PV Level 0.0 0.0 0.1 3.1 - 0.0
Pending TIME TEMP			ANALOG OU	TPUTS SLOT 3		
LEVEL DOOR Recipe Steps 1 SS Fil 2 SS dPreheat						
3 SS dComeUp	PV Steam Valve	[%]	Cooling Valve [%]	PV Air Valve [%] Syste	m Vent Valve [%]
5 SS iMicroCool	0		0	0		0
6 SS iCooling						
	PV Drain Valve	[%]	Spare Analog Output []	Spare Analog Outpi	ut[] Spare	Analog Output []
	0		0	0		0
し Process Start				Manual Ctrl Disabled	E k	Virtual P Login

Figure 11 – Analog Outputs

STOCK America LLC 101 Green Trace Court, Garner, NC 27529 (P)919.661.1911 (F)919.661.3778 s	stockamerica.com
---	------------------



Manual

The Digital Output screens allow the user to manually turn on the outputs. This option is only available then the system is on idle and the manual control is enabled. To enable the manual control function, press the button label "Manual Control Disabled". This will change the color of the button to yellow and now will read "Manual Control Enabled" indicating that the mode is active. After completing the manual functions press the "Manual Control Enabled" button to return it to "Manual Control Disabled" state. (See Figure 12a)

5 STOCK	05/20/202009:54:11 OVERVIEW	ALARMS	TREND	INPUTS/O	UTPUT IC	ON SMS	User: stocka APPLICATION
Prod Id: Steam Prod Desc: Can 12 Batch Id: 01122	n Water Spray Rev: 1 2 oz 7010105192020	00 Cook Id: Step/Phase: 00 IDLE		Setpoint (Actual (Tot Time (Fine PV Temp 060:00 0.0 000:00 72.1 097:24 80.5	Flow 0.0 0.0 Ramp	Sys Press PV Level 0.0 0.0 0.1 3.1 0.0 0.0
Pending			Digital	Outputs			
LEVEL DOOR	O 05.0 - Red Light			0	06.5 - Spare		
Recipe Steps 1 SS Fill	O 05.1 - Yellow Lig	ht		0	06.6 - Spare		
2 SS dPreheat	O 05.2 - Green Ligi	nt		0	06.7 - Spare		
3 SS dComeUp 4 SS dHold	O 05.3 - Alarm Hor	n		0	SolVal.0 - Pre-Hea	it Valve	
5 SS iMicroCool	O 05.4 - Spare			0	SolVal.1 -	SolVal.0 - Pre	Heat Valve
6 SS iCooling	O 05.5 - Spare			0	SolVal.2 -	Manual	
7 33 Diair	O 05.6 - Spare			0	SolVal.3 - Spare		
	O 05.7 - Spare			0	SolVal.4 - Direct C	irculation Va	alve
	O 06.0 - Circulation	n Pump		0	SolVal.5 - Hx Circu	ulation Valve	2
	O 06.1 - Conveyor	Forward		0	SolVal.6 - Blank D	isc	
	O 06.2 - Conveyor	Reverse		0	SolVal.7 - Blank D	isc	
	06.3 - Spare			0	SolVal.8 - Door Lo	ick Open	
	O 06.4 - Spare			0	SolVal.9 - Door Lo	ick Close	
じ Process Start				Mai	nual Ctrl Enabled	E K	Virtual P Login

Figure 12a – Digital Output Manual Function



5 STOCK	05/20/2020 09:5	5:13 ALARMS	TREND	INPUTS/OUTPUT	ICON SMS	User: stocka APPLICATION
Prod Id: Steam Prod Desc: Can 12 Batch Id: 01122	Water Spra y R ! oz 7010105192020	ev: 00 Cook Id: Step/Phase:	DO IDLE	Time Setpoint 060:00 Actual 000:00 Tot Time 097:24	PV Temp Flow 0.0 0.0 72.1 0.0 80.5 Ramp -	Sys Press PV Level 0.0 0.0 0.1 3.1 - 0.0
Pending TIME TEMP			ANALOG O	UTPUTS SLOT 3		
LEXE DOOR Recipe Steps 1 1 ISF 2 ISF 3 ISC consulty 4 ISF 5 ISF 6 ISF 7 ISF 7 ISF	PV Steem \	Valve [%6] 0	Cooling Valve [96]	Control Ouput (%):	Valve 0 % Syste	m Vent Valve [%6]
		0	0	0		0
し Process Start				Manual Ctrl Enabled	📟 _k	Virtual Login

Figure 12b – Analog Output Manual Function



Figure 12c – Manual Functions from Overview Screen



ICON^{SMS} Button

IconSMS

The IconSMS display shows an overview of the ICON^{SMS} Recipe Management application. The application can be accessed from the HMI or over the network via a web browser by accessing the URL <u>http://hostcomputeripaddress/iconSMS</u>. In order to access the application over the network, the Host computer address (**hostcomputeripaddress/iconSMS**) will have to be replaced by the IP address of the HMI Computer. (Example: <u>http://192.168.15.111/iconSMS</u>). (See figure 14)

See the Recipe Management User Guide for more information.



Figure 14 – IconSMS display



Download Recipe

The download recipe option allows the user to **select a production recipe and download it to the retort**. Only users with the roles of Administrator, Recipe Administrator and Operator can access this page. The production recipes listed are the last production revisions of the recipes.

The 'download recipe' function is part of the Icon^{SMS} application. In order to access the 'download recipe' function the user must click the Icon^{SMS} button from the main menu. Clicking the Icom^{SMS} button opens the application. The user is then able to select the recipe menu which contains the 'download a recipe' option. The user selects the desired recipe to download and clicks the 'Download Recipe' button (see figure 15). A list of available retorts supporting the recipe process mode is then displayed. The user selects the retort(s) for the recipe download (see figure 16). If a retort is running or if there is an error reading the status of the retort, it will be disabled from selection (see figure 16 which shows retort 1 as the only retort available for download). When the user selects **download a recipe**, a confirmation box will be displayed. The user must confirm if he/she would like to download the recipe. If the user selects "no", the download will be cancelled. If the user selects "yes", a loading animation is presented to the user. The animation indicates that download process is taking place. (See figure 17)

If the sequence of downloading a recipe is completed with no errors, a message is displayed informing the user that the recipe was downloaded successfully. If there is an error in the sequence, the user is informed of the error. If the download results in an error the user can attempt to download the recipe again. (See figure 18).

The events of downloading a recipe are logged and a report can be requested. See the "Reports" section for more information on the download recipe status.

The HMI also receives the status of the recipe download. See Section "Recipe Download Status".



Figure 15 – Recipe Download



5 STOCK	05/20/2020 10:00:0	0 ALARMS	TREND	INPUTS/OUTPUT	ICON SMS	User: stocka APPLICATION
Prod Id: Steam Prod Desc:Can 1 Batch Id: 01122	n Water Spray Rev. 2 oz 27010105192020	00 Cook Id: Step/Phase: 00 IDLE		Time Setpoint 060:00 Actual 000:00 Tot Time 097:24	PV Temp Flow 0.0 0.0 72.1 0.0 80.5 Ramp	Sys Press PV Level 0.0 0.0 0.1 3.1 - 0.0
Pending			Ico	onSMS		
LEVEL DOOR Recipe Steps	Home Reports 1	rend Recipe Record Review	Configuration Login	Logout		Userstocka
1 SS Fil 2 SS dPreheat						
3 SS dComeUp 4 SS dHold 5 SS MicroCool 6 SS iCooling 7 SS Drain	R Des Reti	ccipe: StTempDistTest cription: Distribution test © 240/250/2 rts: ☐ Retort 1 ☐ Retort 2	Please select reto	rt to download recipe	Revision: 1	
し Process Start				Manual Ctrl Enabled	. K	Virtual 🖪 Login

Figure 16 – Retort list for recipe download







STOCK	05/20/2020 10:00:00 OVERVIEW	ALARMS	TREND	INPUTS/OUTPUT	ICON SMS	User: stocka APPLICATION
Prod Id: Steam Prod Desc: Can 12 Batch Id: 01122	1 Water Spra y Rev: 2 oz 7010105192020	00 Cook Id: Step/Phase: 00 IDLE		Time Setpoint 060:00 Actual 000:00 Tot Time 097:24	PV Temp Flow 0.0 0.0 72.1 0.0 80.5 Ramp	Sys Press PV Level 0.0 0.0 0.1 3.1 0.0 0.0
Pending TIME TEMP			Ico	onSMS		
LEVEL DOOR Recipe Steps	STOCK America, Inc. Home Reports Tr	end Recipe Record Review C	onfiguration Login	Logout		Usenstocka
2 SS dPreheat 3 SS dComeUp			Please select reto	rt to download recipe		
4 SS dHold 5 SS iMicroCool 6 SS iCooling	Re Desci Retor	cipe: StTempDistTest iption: Distribution test @ 240/250/260 ts: ØRetort 1 Retort 2	Down	oad Recipe	Revision: 1	
7 SS Drain	Do Reto Recij	wnload Status rt 1 De download Started 03/29/2018 12:44:21 Downloaded Retort is running 03/25) //2018 12:44:32			
し Process Start				Manual Ctrl Enabled	E Ke	Virtual 🖪 Login

Figure 18 – Downloading Results Error Message

Recipe Download in Progress	See Figure 19. Displays when the recipe download is in progress. The start button is hidden during the download of a recipe.
Recipe Download Successful	See Figure 20. Displays after the recipe has been downloaded successfully. The retort operator must acknowledge the recipe download by pressing the "clear status" button to make the start button visible. The banner then disappears and information for the downloaded recipe is displayed.
Recipe Download Failed	See Figure 21. Displays after an error occurs during the recipe download process. The banner will stay visible until the recipe operator acknowledges the failure and presses the button labeled "clear status" or the operator attempts another recipe download. The start button is hidden during the download failure of a recipe.

Recipe Download Status





Figure 19 – Recipe Download in Progress



Figure 20 – Recipe Download Successful





Figure 21 – Recipe Download Failed

From the IconSMS menu the user can request the recipe report of the current recipe that is loaded on the retort by selecting recipe report from the menu this action loads the pdf report of the recipe inside the HMI Graphic. See figure 21a below. Another option for the user is to request the batch report of the current running batch or last batch that was run on the reports. See figure 21b.



20/2020 10:00	ALARI	ИŚ			TREND		INPUTS/OUTF	TUT	IC	ON SM	IS		APP
ter Sprav R	ev: 00 Cook I	1:					Tim	e PV	Temp	Flo	w	Sys P	ress
					_		Setpoint 060	0:00	0.0		0.0		0.0
					_		Actual 000	0:00	72.1		0.0		0.1
0105192020	Step/Pha	se: 00	IDLE		_		Tot Time 097	:24	80.5	Ra	mp		0.0
						Icor	nSMS						
888	🔆 🕂 🖊 2		- II	1% 🔻		8 2	8 🕹 🛃					Co	mmen
ICONSMS R	ecipe Report												
Recipe:	WI_Hot_STOCK_T	est		Rev: 1	Cre	ated Date	: 2/6/2018 10:19:07 AM	By: stock	a LastNo	one	Туре	: Experir	nental
Description:	WI_Hot_STOCK_T	est											
Comments:	WI_Hot_STOCK_T	est											
Comments: Procs Mode:	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion	est	c	ontaine	r: None	none	c	aty: 1		Motion	Rotatio	n	
Comments: Procs Mode:	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: 5	est	C Interval	ontaine 2%: N	r:None /A	none Interval 3%	6: N / A Min IT (F):	2ty: 1	Proc	Motion: cess Tal	Rotatio	n Energy	Mode
Comments: Procs Mode:	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: 5	est	C Interval :	ontaine 2%: N	r: None / A Se	none Interval 39 gment l	6: N / A Min IT (F): Parameters	aty: 1 100	Proc	Motion: cess Tal	Rotatio	on Energy	Mode
Comments: Procs Mode: VUser Inputs Seg # 1	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: 5	est	C Interval :	ontaine 2%: N	r: None / A Se	none Interval 39 gment I	6: N / A Min IT (F): Parameters	Aty: 1 100	Proc	Motion: cess Tal	Rotatio	on Energy	Mode
Comments: Procs Mode: User Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: 5 HSV Value	Units	C Interval : Upper Tol	containe 2%: N Lower Tol	r: None / A Se Delay Sec	none Interval 39 gment I Alarm Enabled	6: N / A Min IT (F): Parameters Parameter	Aty: 1 100 Value	Proc	Motion: cess Tal Upper Tol	Rotatio	Delay Sec	Mode Ala Enabl
Comments: Procs Mode: User Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter SV Temperature	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: 5 HSV Value e 270.0	Units	C Interval : Upper Tol 0.0	Containe 2%: N Lower Tol 0.0	r: None / A Se Delay Sec 0	none Interval 3% gment I Alarm Enabled	6: N / A Min IT (F): Parameters Parameter SV Level	Aty: 1 100 Value 0	Proc Units	Motion: cess Tal Upper Tol 0.0	Rotatio	Delay Sec	Mode Ala Enabl
Comments: Procs Mode: User Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter SV Temperaturn System Press	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: 5 HSV Value 270.0 26.0	Units F PSI	C Interval : Upper Tol 0.0 0.0	ontaine 2%: N Lower Tol 0.0 0.0	r: None / A Se Delay Sec 0 0	none Interval 39 gment I Alarm Enabled	6: N / A Min IT (F): Parameters Parameter SV Level Rotor Speed	2ty: 1 100 Value 0 0.0	Units % RPM	Motion: cess Tal Upper Tol 0.0 0.0	EROTATION	Delay Sec 0 0	Mode Ala Enabl
Comments: Procs Mode: User Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter SV Temperature System Press Segment Hold	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion : Interval 1%: 5 HSV Value e 270.0 26.0 1	Units F PSI na	C Interval : Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0	ontaine 2%: N Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0	r: None / A Se Delay Sec 0 0 0	none Interval 39 gment I Alarm Enabled	6: N / A Min IT (F): Parameters SV Level Rotor Speed PG #1	2ty: 1 100 Value 0 0.0 0.0	Units % RPM	Motion: cess Tal Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0	E Rotatic ble	Delay Sec 0 0	Mode Ala Enabl
Comments: Procs Mode: User Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter SV Temperaturn System Press Segment Hold PG #2	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion is Interval 1%: 5 HSV 24lue 2 270.0 26.0 1 0	Units F PSI na	C Interval : Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	ontaine 2%: N Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	r: None / A Se Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0	none Interval 39 gment I Alarm Enabled	6: N / A Min IT (F): Parameters SV Level Rotor Speed PG #1 PG #2	2ty: 1 100 Value 0 0.0 0.0 0 0	Units % RPM	Motion: cess Tal Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	E Rotatic ble	Delay Sec 0 0 0 0	Mode Alar Enabl
Comments: Procs Mode: VUser Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter SV Temperatur System Press Segment Hold PG #2 Seg # 2	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion a Interval 1%: B Value a 270.0 26.0 1 0 Come Up - Vent	Units F PSI na	C Interval : Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0	2%: N Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	r: None / A Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0	none Interval 39 gment I Alarm Enabled	6: N / A Min IT (F): Parameters SV Level Rotor Speed PG #1 PG #3	2ty: 1 100 Value 0 0.0 0 0 0 0	Units % RPM	Motion: cess Tal Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	E Rotatic ble	Delay Sec 0 0 0 0	Alar Enabl
Comments: Procs Mode: User Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter SV Temperatur System Press Segment Hold PG #2 Seg # 2 Parameter	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: 5 HSV 270.0 26.0 26.0 1 0 Come Up - Vent	Units F PSI na	C Interval : Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	2%: N Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	r: None / A Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 Delay Sec	none Interval 39 gment I Alarm Enabled	estimates Parameter SV Level Rotor Speed PG #1 PG #3 Parameter	2ty: 1 100 Value 0 0.0 0 0 0	Units % RPM	Motion: cess Tal Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Mode Ala Enabl
Comments: Procs Mode: Vuser Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter SV Temperaturn System Press Segment Hold PG #2 Seg # 2 Parameter PV Temperaturn SV Temperaturn	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: 5 HSV 270.0 26.0 26.0 26.0 1 0 Come Up - Ventu Value 250.0	Units F PSI na Units	C Interval : Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	2%: N Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	r: None / A Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	none Interval 39 gment I Alarm Enabled	K N / A Min IT (F); Parameter Parameter SV Level Rotor Speed PG #1 PG #3 Parameter System Press	Aty: 1 100 Value 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Value 260	Units % RPM Units PSI	Motion: cess Tal Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Upper Tol 0.0	E Rotatio ble	Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Alar Enabl
Comments: Proces Mode: Vuser Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter SV Temperatur System Press Segment Hold PG #2 PG #2 Parameter PV Temperatur System Press R	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: 5 HSV 2 270.0 26.0 1 0 Come Up - Vent Value e 253.0 0 0 0	Units PSI na Units F PPM	C Interval : Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Upper Tol 0.0 0.0	ontaine 2%: N Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	r: None / A I Se Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Alarm Alarm Enabled Alarm Enabled	K / A Min IT (F): Parameter SV Level Rotor Speed PG #1 PG #3 Parameter System Press PV Level	2ty: 1 100 Value 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Value 26.0 90	Units % RPM Units PSI %	Motion: cess Tal Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	E Rotatic ble Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Alar Enabl
Comments: Procs Mode: VUser Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter SV Temperature System Press Segment Hold PG #2 Seg # 2 Parameter PV Temperature System Press For Second	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: F HSV 2 270.0 260.0 210.0 260.0 10 Corme Up - Value 2 2 0 Corme Up - Value 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 4 4 5 5 6 6 18.0	Units PSI na Units F PPM RPM	C Interval : Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	ontaine 2%: N Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	r: None / A Se Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Alarm Alarm Enabled	Constant Sector Se	Value 00 0	Units % RPM Units PSI % MIN	Motion: cess Tal 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	E Rotatio ble	Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Alai Enabl
Comments: Procs Mode: User Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter Sv Temperatur System Press Segment Hold PG #2 Seg # 2 Parameter PV Temperatur System Press R Rotor Speed Segment Second	Will Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: 5 HSV 270.0 250.0 1 0 Come Up - Vent 253.0 camp 0.0 180.0	Units F PSI na Units F PPM RPM SEC	C Interval : Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	2%: N Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	r: None / A Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Alarm Alarm Enabled	K N / A Min IT (F): Parameter Parameter SV Level Rotor Speed PG #1 PG #3 Parameter System Press PV Level Segment Minutes Segment Minutes Segment Hold	Value 00 Value 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Units % RPM Units PSI % MIN na	Motion: cess Tal Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	E Rotatio ble	Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Mode Alai Enabl
Comments: Procs Mode: Vuser Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter SV Temperatur System Press Segment Hold PG #2 PV Temperatur PV Temperatur System Press R Rotor Speed Segment Secon PG #1	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: 5 HSV 24lue 270.0 26.0 26.0 26.0 26.0 0 Come Up - Vent 283.0 tamp 0.0 0 tamp 0.0 0 0 0 0	Units F PSI na Units F PPM RPM SEC	C Interval : Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	2%: N Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	r: None / A Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Alarm Enabled Alarm Enabled	K N / A Min IT (F): Parameter Parameter SV Level Rotor Speed PG #1 PG #3 Parameter System Press PV Level Segment Minutes Segment Hold PG #2	Value 00 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Units % RPM Units PSI % MIN na	Motion: cess Tal Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	E Rotatic ble Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Mode Alai Enabl
Comments: Procs Mode: Vuser Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter SV Temperature System Press Segment Hold PG #2 Seg # 2 Parameter PV Temperature System Press Rev System Press	Will Hot_STOCK_T Water immersion Interval 1%: 5 HSV 2 270.0 260.0 2100 253.0 0 Corme Up - Status 9 253.0 180.0 180.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	Units F PSI na Units F PPM RPM SEC	C Interval : 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	ontaine 2%: N Lower Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	r: None /A Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Alarm Enabled	K N / A Min IT (F): Parameter V Level Rotor Speed PG #1 PG #3 Parameter System Press PV Level Segment Minutes Segment Hold PG #2	2ty: 1 100 Value 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Units % RPM Units PSI % MIN na	Motion: cess Tal Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	Rotatic Lower Tol 0.0	Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Mode Ala Enabl
Comments: Proces Mode: Vuser Inputs Seg # 1 Parameter Sv Temperatur System Press Segment Hold PG #2 Seg # 2 Parameter PV Temperatur System Press F Rotor Speed Segment Secon PG #1 PG #3 Seg # 3	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: 5 HSV 270.0 2600 270.0 2600 1 0 Come Up - Vent 253.0 18.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Units F PSI na Units F PPM RPM SEC	C Interval 3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	Lower Tol N 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	r: None / A Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Alarm Enabled	K N/A Min IT (F): Parameter Parameter SV Level Rotor Speed PG #1 PG #3 Parameter System Press PV Level Segment Minutes Segment Hold PG #2	2ty: 1 100 Value 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 26.0 90 3 3 0 0	Units % RPM Units PSI % MIN na	Motion: cess Tal Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	Rotatic ble	Energy Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Mode
Comments: Proces Modes: Vuer Inputs Seg# 1 Parameter System Press Segment Hold PG #2 Por Temperaturn System Press F Rotor Speed Segment Secon PG #1 PG #3 Seg# 3	WI_Hot_STOCK_T Water Immersion Interval 1%: 5 HSV 250.0 250.0 250.0 250.0 250.0 250.0 250.0 250.0 250.0 250.0 250.0 200.0 200.0 18.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Units F PSI na Units F PPM RPM SEC	C Upper Tol 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.	Image: ontained state sta	r: None / A / A / See Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Alarm	6: N/A Min IT (F): Parameter SV Level Rotor Speed PG #1 PG #3 Parameter System Press PV Level Segment Minutes Segment Hold PG #2	2ty: 1 100 Value 0 0 0 0 0 Value 226.0 90 3 0 0 0	Units % RPM Units PSI % MIN na	Motion: cess Tal Upper 0.0	Rotatic ble	Delay Sec 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Alai Enabi

Figure 21a – Recipe Report



d Id: Steam Water d Desc: Can 12 oz ch Id: 01122701010 Pending te: TEMP EL: DOOR iecipe Steps 5 dPreheat 5 dPreheat 5 dOrneUp 5 dHold 5 dMroCool 5 Times Steps	Spray	Rev: 00 Cook Id: Step/Phase: Batch Report	00 IDLE	Icor	Setpo Actu Tot Tir nSMS	Time int 060:00 ual 000:00 ne 097:24	PV Temp 0.0 72.1 80.5	P Flow 0.0 0.0 Ramp	Sys Press P 0.0 0.1 0.0	V Le 0 3
d Desc: Can 12 oz ch Id: 01122701010 Pending RE TEMP EL DOOR tetipe Steps 5 Fil 6 dPreheat 5 dPreheat	CON SMS etort: ecipe: tart Timo:	Step/Phase: Batch Report	00 IDLE	Icor	Setpo Actu Tot Tir	Int 060:00 Jal 000:00 ne 097:24	0.0 72.1 80.5	0.0 0.0 Ramp	0.0	3
h Id: 01122701010 ending TEMP L DOOR cipe Steps Fil dPreheat droneUp dHold Se MicroCool Toolog	CON SMS etort: ecipe: tat Time:	Step/Phase: Batch Report	00 IDLE	Icor	Actu Tot Tir	ual 000:00 ne 097:24	72.1	0.0 Ramp	0.1	3
ending TEMP DOOR CPD Steps Fil dPreheat drochod McrocCool Cooho Tim	CON SMS etort: ecipe: tat Timo:	Step/Phase:	OO_IDLE	Icor	ISMS	097:24	80.5	Ramp	0.0	
ending TEMP L DOOR cipe Steps Fil dPreheat droneUp driod Mcrocool Econtrol Time	CON SMS etort: ecipe: tart Time:	Batch Report	_	Icor	ISMS					
TEMP DOOR IC DOOR IC DOOR IC CON RI RC APreheat dcomeUp dcomeUp dcomeUp dcomeUp dcomeUp	CON SMS etort: ecipe: tat Time:	Batch Report		1001	131-13					
DOOR ipe Steps Fil Arrow A	CON SMS etort: ecipe:	Batch Report								
IDP Steps IC Fil Ri dPreheat Re dComeUp Ca dHold Se MicroCool Se Cooling	etort: ecipe:	2 Batch Report								
dPreheat Rt dComeUp Cc dHold Se MicroCool Se Cooling Tim	etort: ecipe: tart Time:	2				C	ook #:			-
IPreheat Rt IComeUp Cc IHold See MicroCool See	ecipe: tart Time:		Batch: 0	2134801021520	18		Coo	ok Id: water im tes	t 2	
IComeUp Cr IHold See MicroCool See		WI_Hot_STOCK_Test	Description: V	VI_Hot_STOCK_	Test		-	Rev: 1 - Experime	ental	
Hold Se ficroCool Se Cooling	ontainer	02/15/2018 13:48:01	End Time: 0	2/10/2018 10:09	.17		Dura	tion: 01:21:16		
Hold Se MicroCool Se Cooling	ontainer.	None - none	SV Temp	Svs Pres	Rotor	PV Level	Flow			
AicroCool Se Tir	eg #: 1	HSV - 1	°F	psi	rpm	%	gpm			
iooling	eg Begin eg End ime In Seg:	02/15/2018 13:48:01 02/15/2018 14:11:14 00:23:13	223.6 270.2	5.80 25.90	0.0 0.0	0.5 0.4	0			
Se	eg #: 2	Come Up - Vent - 1	PV Temp °F	Sys Pres psi	Rotor rpm	PV Level %	Flow gpm			
rain Se	eg Begin	02/15/2018 14:11:14	73.6	0.00	0.0	0.4	0			
Se	eg End ime In Seg:	02/15/2018 14:14:14 00:03:00	235.0	32.00	18.1	103.2	629	Q_*		
Se	eg #: 3	Come Up - 1	PV Temp ∘F	Sys Pres	Rotor	PV Level	Flow			
Se	eg Begin	02/15/2018 14:14:14	235.0	32.00	18.1	103.2	629)		
Se	eg End	02/15/2018 14:17:33	253.0	34.00	18.0	87.9	485			
	inie in seg.	00.03.19	PV Temp	Sys Pres	Rotor	PV Level	Flow			
Se	eg #: 4	Sterilization - 1	٩	psi	rpm	%	gpm			
Se	eg Begin eg End	02/15/2018 14:17:33 02/15/2018 14:47:33	253.0	34.00 22.90	18.0	87.9	485			
Tir	ime In Seg:	00:30:00	200.0	22.00	10.0					
Se	eg #: 5	Cooling 1 - 1	PV Temp °F	Sys Pres	Rotor (PV Level %	Flow			
Se	eg Begin	02/15/2018 14:47:33	250.0	22.90	18.0	73.7	359			
Se	eg End ime In Seg:	02/15/2018 14:52:02 00:04:29	152.4	24.20	18.0	90.9	562			
Se	eg #: 6	Cooling 2 - 1	PV Temp	Sys Pres	Rotor	PV Level	Flow			-

Figure 21b – Batch Report

Recipe Steps Status

The Recipe Steps status shown in figure 23 displays a list of the 16 possible steps in a recipe labeled for the step number (01 to 16). Each step includes a description. The application highlights the active step in green. When the system is in pause, it indicates the step the system will run in after the pause is removed. Figure 23 reflects Step 01 and SS Fill is the active step. Information pertaining to each step is displayed graphically.





Figure 23 – Recipe Steps



Pressing or touching a on a recipe step displays the recipe setpoints for that step. This information is requested to the Host computer and the information is display from the database. See figure 23a below

S STOCK	05/21/202006:48:5 OVERVIEW	alarms	TREND		INPUTS/OL	JTPUT	ICON SMS	User: stocka APPLICATION
Prod Id: Steam Prod Desc: Can 12 Batch Id: 01122	n Water Spra y Rev: 2 oz 7010105192020	00 Cook Id: Step/Phase: <mark>04</mark> SS d	Sterilization	Segmen	T Setpoint 0 Actual 0 Tot Time 0 t in Hold	ime PV T 160:00 1 100:00 7 197:24 8	Emp Flow 0.0 0.0 72.1 0.0 30.5 Ramp	Sys Press PV Level 0.0 0.0 0.1 3.1 - 0.0
Pending TIME TEMP			Recipe Par	ameter Va	alues for S	eg 4		
Recipe Steps			Phase	e SS dS <u>ter</u>	ilization			
2 SS dPreheat 3 SS dComeUp 4 SS dSterilization 5 SS dPressure 6 SS dAtmos Cool 7 SS Drain		PV Tem System System PV Leve Rotor Sy Segmen Segmen PG #1 PG #2 PG #3	ameter perature : Press Ramp (Press Ramp (l peed : t Minutes : t Seconds (t Hold ()	Value 253 26 0 90 18 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Unit F PSI PPM % RPM MIN SEC na		Previous Recipe Step Next Recipe Step	
Abort Process	Pause Process		Remove Hold			Ø	Force Step Complete	Virtual Keyboard

Figure 23a – Recipe Steps Setpoints

Retort Identification

The Retort Id (see figure 24) is a field in the upper left corner of the displays that shows a unique number identifying each retort in the system.





Figure 24 – Retort Identification

Start Process

Process Start Contains the Following Pre-Conditions

- System must have achieved successful Recipe Download
- Door Closed & Lock
- E-Stop is not Pressed

The Process Start button is only available when the preconditions are met. When the user presses the Start button, a Process Start confirmation window opens. (See figure 25).





Figure 25 – Process Start Confirmation Display

Process Start Confirmation Display Fields

Cook Id	Name of the running cook alpha numeric field. The user enters the optional value. The maximum
	number of characters is 15. This information will be part of the batch report.
Process Start	The Yes Button will command/confirm the system to start the cook. The Yes Button is only available
	if the system isn't running.
Close	Display will not auto close after the user has entered the data and started the process. The user
	presses the close button to close the display.
Door Unlocked	Toggle Button to lock or unlock the door. This button is disabled when the safety conditions of level,
	termpature and pressure are not met.

Abort

The abort function is available to the operator during a cook. Since utilization of the abort function can result in deviations, one must follow company SOP procedures when performing this function. When the user presses the abort button from the overview screen in the footer, the abort confirmation screen will be displayed (see figure 26). Once confirmed, this action cannot be reversed. This event is recorded by the system and printed on the batch report.



Figure 26 – Abort Confirmation Display

Hold

The retort operator can initiate a HOLD during any process step by pressing the HOLD button. A confirmation display (Figure 28) will be presented and the subsequent SEGMENT HOLD will be documented on the batch report. When the Hold segment is active it is indicated on the display header (see Figure 27).



Icon^{SMS} User Guide



A **SEGMENT HOLD** functions is located on the footer (figure 27a) and is used to extend the segment or delay the normal sequence to the subsequent segment. All configured variables will continue to run normally, and the segment timer will continue to accumulate time in a normal fashion. When depressed, a pop-up menu (figure 27b) will appear to confirm your request to hold the current segment or cancel by selecting exit. Once chosen to hold the segment, the footer will display Remove Hold and Hold segment is active it is indicated on the display header. (Figure 27c)

<complex-block></complex-block>		Process			Hold		2	Complete	Keyt	intual loard	Login
<complex-block></complex-block>				Figur	e 27a – Holo	d Button					
<image/>				Hol	ld Segm	ent ?					
<complex-block></complex-block>											
<section-header><text></text></section-header>				Н	old	X	Close				
<section-header></section-header>											
<complex-block>ProventionProventionAndTaxTaxData (Data)Data (Data)Data (Data)Data (Data)NoteIndiana<</complex-block>			Figure	e 27b –	- Hold Confi	rmation Disp	lay				
Prod. Like Work Work Work Work Work Work Work Work		TOCK	05/20/2020 15:01:50							User: stoo	ka
Intermitting Testing for the construction Set point Good Good <t< th=""><th>Prod I</th><th>d: Steam</th><th>OVERVIEW ALARMS</th><th></th><th>TREND</th><th></th><th>me PV</th><th>ICON SMS</th><th>w Sys Pr</th><th>APPLICATIO</th><th>vel</th></t<>	Prod I	d: Steam	OVERVIEW ALARMS		TREND		me PV	ICON SMS	w Sys Pr	APPLICATIO	vel
Batch 11 11222010105192020 Step/Phase: 0.1111 0.012 0.012 0.012 0.012 0.012 Segment In Hold Pending	Prod E	Desc:Can 12	2 oz			Setpoint 06 Actual 00	60:00 00:00	0.0 (72.1 (0.0 C	.0 0 .1 3	.0
Pending THE THE Second S SS Period S SS	Batch	Id: 01122	7010105192020 Step/Phase:	D1 WI HS\		Tot Time 09	97:24	80.5 Rar	np 0	.0	
Abort Pause - Remove Step Virtual - Virtual	TIME LEVEL Ret 1 SS F 2 SS d 3 SS d 4 SS d 5 SS N 6 SS K 7 SS D	TEMP DOOR pe Steps I Preheat ComeUp Hold teroCool teroCool teroCool	Cold Water Valve 0 % Chain Conveyor Steam Valve 0 % Ar Valve 0 % Pre-Heat Valve Drain Valve 0 %	Hix Circulation Loop Circulation Loop	to Copy to cop	Vent Valve 0% Pre-H TEM Pre-H TEM Water Le Level % Max Level Sens Min Level Sens	P (F): 72.1 (psi): 0.1 P (F): 70.9	Composition Compo	oor Status Info Door Press Door Door Virtual	Close Sensor (ure Safety (.ocked (Safety Circut (

Figure 27c – Segment Hold indication



Remove Segment Hold

The remove segment hold function is available when the system is in hold. Once the operator selects the, REMOVE HOLD button from the footer, a confirmation screen (Figure 28) will appear to confirm the desired action. The REMOVE HOLD action will also be documented on the batch report.

When the REMOVE HOLD action is confirmed, the segment will sequence normally and will advance to the next segment after all process conditions are met.



Figure 28 – Hold Confirmation Display

Pause

The retort operator can initiate a Pause during any step in the process by pressing the Pause button. A confirmation display (Figure 29) will be presented and the subsequent pause will be documented on the batch report. When the process pause is active it will be indicated on a display header. (See Figure 30)

The **PROCESS PAUSE** function stops the current step time and turns off all digital and analog control outputs, including valves and pump motors. The main purpose of the PROCESS PAUSE is to allow the operator to move forward or backwards in the current recipe in a safe fashion.

Please note the Prev Step and Next Step buttons are only available once the PROCESS PAUSE is confirmed.

A process pause, when initiated during any critical process step, should be considered a process deviation and must be reviewed by a competent process authority.









Figure 30 – Process Pause Indication

Remove Pause

The remove pause function is available when the system is in pause. Once the operator selects the remove pause button, a confirmation screen (Figure 31) will appear to confirm the desired action. The remove pause action will also be documented on the batch report.

Removing the PROCESS PAUSE will re-start the process in the segment that was selected by the operator using the PREVIOUS and NEXT buttons.





Figure 31 – Remove Process Pause Confirmation

Force Step Complete

If the retort operator needs to advance/force a step without having to pause the process, they can do so by pressing the Force Step Complete button. A confirmation display (Figure 31a) will be presented and the subsequent Force Step action will be documented on the batch report.



Figure 31a – Hold Confirmation Display

User Inputs

During the Cook segment, the user may be prompted to enter critical process information that becomes part of the permanent batch record. When user inputs are required it will be indicated on the display header. (See Figures 32 and 33)

When this display first opens, the **confirm** button remains hidden until both values (Ref temp and Chart temp) are greater than zero. If the user enters a chart temp greater than the Ref temp, a confirmation box (See Figure 34) will be displayed when the user presses the **confirm** button. The user is given the opportunity to ensure that the information is correct and if the user presses the **yes** button the information is stored, and the window will close. If the user chooses **no** they are given the opportunity to correct the entries.

As part of the required information per the record keeping FDA requirements, the operator <u>must</u> enter the MIG (or equivalent calibrated ATID digital readout) and Chart temperatures that occur once the process stabilizes during the Cook Step.





Figure 35 – User Inputs Indication

Initial Temperature

The user may be prompted to enter critical process information that becomes part of the permanent batch record. When the initial temperature is required a button label Initial Temp Input will be display at the footer of the screen and a banner will be display at the header screen that will blink Initial Temp Required. (See Figures 35a)

When this display first opens, the **accept** button remains disabled until a value for the initial temperature is entered. (See Figures 35b)







Figure 35a– User Initial Temperature



Figure 35b – User Initial Temperature



Application Settings Button

The application settings screen presents four options to the operators and an additional toggle button to indicate whether water is retained between cooks. It contains settings for the station id, Utilities PLC Address, URL address for the IconSMS, and the Database address. (See figure 36a)

5 STOCK	05/20/2020 13:51:42 OVERVIEW	ALARMS	TREND	INPUTS/OUTPUT	ICON S	User: stocka SMS APPLICATION
Prod Id: Steam Prod Desc: Can 12 Batch Id: 01122	1 Water Spra y Rev: 0 2 oz 7010105192020	0 Cook Id: Step/Phase: <mark>01 IDLE</mark>		Time Setpoint 060:00 Actual 000:00 Tot Time 097:24	PV Temp 0.0 72.1 80.5	Flow Sys Press PV Level 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 3.1 Ramp 0.0
Pending TIME TEMP			APPLIC	ATION SETTINGS		
LEVEL DOOR Recipe Steps			CHANG	E WITH CAUTION		
2 SS dPreheat		Station Id:	10.0.110.62	ddress Ex 192.168.1.131		
4 SS dHold 5 SS MicroCool		Utilites Id:	10.3.115.50 Format PLC IP A	ddress Ex 192.168.1.131		
6 SS iCooling		IconRMS url:	http://10.3.1	15.48/iconsms		
7 SS Drain		DB Server:	10.3.115.48 DB Server Ex 19	02.168.18.41\SQLExpress		
		Retain	Water Level:	Drain Retort		
U Process Start				Manual Ctrl Disabled		Wirtual Keyboard Login

Figure 36a – Application Settings

STOCK America LLC 101 Green Trace Court, Garner, NC 27529 (P)919.661.1911 (F)919.661.3778 s	stockamerica.com
---	------------------



Users Admin Button

The user admin screen allows users that are a part of the Administrator and User Administrator groups with the ability to refresh or update the HMI user list (see figure 38). The HMI users are the users configured in the ICONSMS applications. The users at the HMI are updated when the HMI application starts or when a user refreshes the list. When a user is disabled in the IconSMS application, the user is also deleted from the HMI application. For more information on the users see the IconSMS User Guide.



Figure 38 – User Administration

The application has 6 defined user group to control the access to the application. The user groups are:





- Administrator Has all the application rights. Can create or edit users, configure printers, create new recipes, edit recipes, download experimental and production recipes, run retort, acknowledge Alarms, access the application settings, manual screens, pid tuning and exit HMI.
- Maintenance Can run retort, ack Alarms manual screens and tune pid loops.
- **Operators** Can run retort and acknowledge Alarms only.
- Recipe Administrator Has the access to create new recipes, edit recipes, download experimental and production recipes, run retort and ack Alarms.
- Recipe Download Allows the user download production recipes, run retort and ack Alarms.
- User (Guest) Can generate reports, view retort screens and view Alarms.
- User Administrator Allows the creation or editing of users, configure printers, run retort, acknowledge Alarms and exit HMI.

Exit HMI Button

The main display also contains the Exit button which is utilized to exit the operator interface application or Shutdown the PC. Pressing this button will launch an **Exit HMI confirmation screen**, like the one on figure 39.



Figure 39 – Exit HMI

Log On /Log Off

To login, the user must log off as the current user. The login screen (See figure 40) is located on the header of the screen next to the company logo. The user enters their User Name and their password to access the system.

🕎 Log On		×
Current user:	Guest	
User Name:		
Password:		
OK	Cancel	Log Off

Figure 40 – Logon/Logoff

STOCK America LLC 101 Green Trace Court, Garner, NC 27529 (P)919.661.1911 (F)919.661.3778 stock	america.com
---	-------------